## Selby District Council



## **Minutes**

### **Executive**

Venue: Committee Room - Civic Centre, Doncaster Road,

Selby, YO8 9FT

Date: Thursday, 6 December 2018

Time: 4.00 pm

Present: Councillors M Crane (Chair), J Mackman (Vice-

Chair), C Lunn, C Metcalfe and C Pearson

Officers Present: Janet Waggott (Chief Executive), Dave Caulfield

(Director of Economic Regeneration and Place), Julie Slatter (Director of Corporate Services & Commissioning), Karen Iveson (Chief Finance Officer (s151)), Gillian Marshall (Solicitor to the Council), Stuart Robinson (Head of Business Development and Improvement) (for minute item 59), Angela Crossland (Head of Community,

Partnerships and Customers) (for minute item 61), June Rothwell (Head of Operational Services) (for minute item 65), Deb McFarlane (Solicitor) (for minute item 65), Julie Walden (Communications & Marketing Officer) and Palbinder Mann (Democratic

Services Manager)

Public: 0

Press: 1

NOTE: Only minute numbers 59, 61 to 63 and 65 are subject to call-in arrangements. The deadline for call-in is 5pm on Wednesday 19 December 2018. Decisions not called in may be implemented from Thursday 20 December 2018.

#### 56 APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE

There were no apologies for absence.

#### 57 MINUTES

The Executive considered the minutes of the meeting held on 8 November 2018.

It was queried whether the fire safety responsibility of the sites outlined in minute item 49 – 'Leisure Services Planned Maintenance Programme Year 10' had been clarified. It was agreed it would be checked whether a response had been sent on this.

It was noted that there was an error in the first resolution under minute item 55 – 'Selby District Economic Development Framework 2017-2022 – Year One Review and Delivery Plan 2019 and 2020' where the word 'delivery' should be replaced with the word 'delivering'.

#### **RESOLVED:**

To approve the minutes of the meeting held on 8 November 2018 with the above amendment for signature by the Chair.

#### 58 DISCLOSURES OF INTEREST

Councillor Mackman declared a personal non pecuniary interest in item 8 -'Housing Development Programme: Ph2 Sites Detailed Business Cases' as he was Chairman of the Selby and District Housing Trust. He stated that he would be leaving the meeting during the consideration of this item.

## 59 CORPORATE PERFORMANCE REPORT - QUARTER 2 - 2018/19 (JULY TO SEPTEMBER)

Councillor Mark Crane, Leader of the Council presented the report which provided a quarterly progress report of the Council's Corporate Plan 2015-20.

The Leader of the Council highlighted an area of concern in relation to the average time to re-let council homes. It was explained that this was due to the poor condition of some of the homes once a tenant had left the property and the additional time required to make the property habitable for the next tenant.

Additionally, the Leader of the Council noted concerns around missed bin collections and the number of active Lifestyle members.

Concern was raised at the overall performance of the Council, notably a slightly lower proportion of all indicators showing improvement than in previous quarters. It was noted that the sickness absence figure had been significantly impacted by the number of long term absences.

#### **RESOLVED:**

To note and approve the report.

#### **REASON FOR DECISION:**

The reporting of performance data enables the Council to demonstrate progress delivering the Corporate Plan priorities to make Selby District a great place.

#### 60 GAMBLING POLICY REFRESH

The Lead Executive Member for Housing, Health and Culture presented the report which outlined the draft Gambling Policy as amended following consultation.

The Lead Executive Member for Housing, Health and Culture explained that the previous policy had been adopted in 2017 and the Council had a duty to review the policy every three years.

#### **RESOLVED:**

To note the draft Gambling Policy as amended following consultation and to recommend to the Council that it be adopted.

#### **REASON FOR DECISION:**

To ensure the Council has an up to date policy.

# 61 PROGRAMME FOR GROWTH (P4G) PROPOSED NEW PROJECT: UCI WORLD CHAMPIONSHIPS AND PARA-CYCLING ROAD RACE QUALIFIERS.

The Lead Executive Member for Housing, Health and Culture presented the report which provided the Executive with a brief outline of the UCI Road World Championships and para-cycle event 2019. The report also considered the proposed role of the Selby District in this, and the necessary resource required from Selby District Council to manage race requirements.

The Lead Executive Member for Housing, Health and Culture explained that the championships consisted of three events which would be held between 21 and 29 September 2019 with a start for the para-cycle event in Tadcaster. The Executive were informed

that £65k was required to resource staging the event with this being a mix of £25k for staging the event and £40k for infrastructure and security.

The Executive were supportive of the proposals and highlighted the benefit of staging the event for the district and in particular the benefit of having a start in Tadcaster after the flooding and bridge collapse that had occurred there.

#### **RESOLVED:**

To approve fund of £65,000 to host the paracycling qualifiers event in line with the UCI Road World Championships Local Authority Agreement and to manage race routes through the district.

#### **REASON FOR DECISION:**

To meet the following requirements:

- The Local Authority agreement with Y2019 to host the para-cycling start event at Tadcaster; and
- The P4G funding authority arrangement that all future P4G budget expenditures over the agreed £10,000 threshold will be presented to Executive individually for approval and tracked in future quarterly reports.

#### 62 BETTER TOGETHER - LEGAL SERVICES UPDATE REPORT

The Leader of the Council presented the report which outlined an update on the Better Together arrangements for Legal Services between Selby District Council and North Yorkshire County Council.

The Leader of the Council explained that the arrangements had provided more resilience for the District Council in the legal services area due to being able to access services from North Yorkshire County Council. Additionally, the Executive stated that they agreed with the proposal outlined in the report to fund an additional post to undertake planning work due to the levels of legal work required in the planning and planning enforcement areas.

#### **RESOLVED:**

To note that the legal services project is working well overall despite challenges which are being resolved within the spirit of collaboration which underpins the Better Together arrangements as a whole.

#### **REASON FOR DECISION:**

To provide the Executive with the requested update and reassurance that the arrangements are delivering the service required.

## 63 HOUSING DEVELOPMENT PROGRAMME: PH2 SITES DETAILED BUSINESS CASES

Following his earlier declaration, Councillor Mackman left the room for the consideration of this item.

The Lead Executive Member for Housing, Health and Culture presented the report which detailed business cases for the small element of phase 2 of the Housing Development Programme. It was noted that the cost estimates were in an exempt appendix therefore if the Executive wished to discuss this, they would have to move into private session.

The Executive were informed that the programme was a £22 million programme to deliver 207 homes. It was noted that the Council and the Selby and District Housing Trust (SDHT) had brought 50 additional affordable housing units to the district in phase one of the programme and had acquired 12 section 106 units. Additionally, it was noted that the phase two sites outlined in the report would be for additional units to be built as Council houses or by SDHT as affordable rented homes.

The Lead Executive Member for Housing, Health and Culture explained that the costs estimates were based on the procurement framework and were above the estimates used in setting the programme budget. The Executive were informed that officers had looked at the reasons for the increase in the estimates and whether these still represented value for money with the findings set out in the report.

The Executive raised concern at the increase in the section 106 subsidy from £20k per unit to £50k per unit and felt that the cost estimates in the report should be lowered through negotiations. The Solicitor to the Council explained that the decision in the report was linked to the procurement process and approval would enable the Council to work with the contractors to value engineer the costs down. Additionally, it was explained that if the final costs were lower than the approved estimated, delegation was provided to proceed however if the costs were higher than the ones outlined in the report then the decision would be brought back to Executive. It was agreed to insert the words 'subject to contract' in resolution two to reflect this.

The Executive also felt that resolution two should include consultation with an Executive member to ensure there was member involvement in the decision. It was agreed that the

member would be the Leader of the Council and it was agreed to amend the resolution to reflect this.

With regard to the section 106 subsidy, the Chief Finance Officer explained that the new figure of £50k per unit should be considered against the transfer value per unit included in the section 106 agreement and therefore even if the Council was using the maximum figure, it would still be maximising the delivery of homes.

#### **RESOLVED:**

- i) To approve the detailed business cases for the seven sites subject to Council's agreement to drawdown additional funding for the programme from the s106 reserve in the 2019/20 budget proposals;
- ii) To authorise the Director of Economic Regeneration and Place in consultation with the Leader of the Council to offer the sites most suitable for housing to the Selby and District Housing Trust at nil value along with a loan and s106 grant subject to contract to fund the development of affordable housing on the usual terms and conditions;
- iii) To authorise officers to proceed to award contracts and seek planning consent for the sites in partnership with Selby and District Housing Trust; and
- iv) To delegate final approval of the transfers and loan documents to the Chief Finance Officer in consultation with the Lead Councillor for Finance and Resources and the Solicitor to the Council.

#### **REASON FOR DECISION:**

To deliver the Housing Development Programme.

Councillor Mackman returned to the meeting.

#### 64 PRIVATE SESSION

It was proposed, and seconded, that the Executive sit in private session for the next item due to the nature of the business to be transacted.

#### **RESOLVED:**

That, in accordance with Section 100(A)(4) of the Local Government Act 1972, in view of the nature of business to be transacted the meeting be not open to the press and public during discussion of the following items as there will be disclosure of exempt information as described in paragraph 3 of Schedule 12(A) of the Act.

## 65 USE OF A COMPULSORY PURCHASE ORDER TO BRING AN EMPTY HOME BACK INTO OCCUPATION.

The Lead Executive Member for Housing, Health and Culture presented the report which outlined details of the use of a Compulsory Purchase Order (CPO) by the Council to bring an empty home back into occupation.

The Lead Executive Member for Housing, Health and Culture explained that the property in question had been empty for over 20 years and as a result was in a bad state of repair. The Executive supported the proposals and that action needed to be taken in respect of properties left vacant for considerable lengths of time.

#### **RESOLVED:**

- i) To note that delegated authority was given by the Executive on 4 January 2017 to purchase properties in relation to the Empty Homes Strategy and Action Plan.
- ii) To authorise the Director of Corporate Services and Commissioning to make a compulsory purchase order to be known as the Selby District Council (Property X, Selby) Compulsory Purchase Order under Section 17 of the Housing Act 1985, in respect of the land and property indicated on a map marked with the name of the Compulsory Purchase Order, where the words "Property X" will be replaced with the full address of the Property.
- iii) To authorise the Director of Corporate Services and Commissioning to take all necessary steps, including sign all necessary documentation and orders to effect the decision made by the Executive.

#### **REASON FOR DECISION:**

To ensure empty homes which have been left lengthy for long

periods of time are brought back into use in accordance with the Council's Empty Homes Strategy.

The meeting closed at 4.53 pm.